THE WEBSTER GENEALOGY.

CHAPTER 1.

First Generation—Governor John Webster of Connecticut.

OrpesT AMERICAN FAMILY oF WEBSTERS.—SUCKTAUG THE [XDIAaN NaME
ror PreE-nisToric HArTrRoRD.—NorIH axp Sourn Sme PLANTATIONS,
—(onTROVERSY WwiTH Duren—Lors SeELeEcTEp Prior 7o 1636.—
Hoogew's JourNeEy.—Exacr Roure Locaren—Joax WEBSTER o
Goverxor StrEer—Werster Housps—Was an Oriemar Pro-
PRIETOR. —ENGLISH ANCESTRY —MEANING OF NAME \WERSTER—CoAT
op ArMs—Gov. WEBsTER'S POSITIONS AND Services.—Cnoren RELA-
Ton5s, Controvensy, Removar 1o Havrepy, Mass.—Dears—>Moxo-
MENT EREcTED BY Noas WeEpsTER—WILL—WITE Aaxes axp CHIL-
DREN,

Oldest Webster Family. —The progenitor ol the oldest, and
probably the most numerous family in America, bearing the name
of Webster, was Jolm Webster of Warwickshive, England. He
came to the Massachusetts Bay Colony in a year not certainly
known, but, by tradition, understood to have been about 1630-33.
He removed from Newtowne, now Cambridge, Massachusetts, {o
the present site of Hartford, Connecticut, in 1636, presumably with
the Rev, Thomas Hooker and his historic party.

Hartford, Connecticut. — Hartlord was then known by its In-
dian name, Sucliawg, meaning “black earth,” possibly from the
dark rich soil of its fertile meadows and cultivated fields, portions
of the country even then being under the rongh tillage of the
savages.

The South Side. — John Webster located on the south side of
Little River, a small stream flowing into the Commecticut from
the west. and which, from the founding of the Colony, has di-
vided the town into two unequal parts, the south side never quite
equaling the north in population. In the beginning, it formed the
houndary between two “plantations™ into which the community
was divided, and this dual feature.—with separate meetings, in-
dependent books, and recognition in the town votes,—continued
even after the legal organization of the town was effected.
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2 Tue Wepsrer Gexearocy [Hartford, Conn.

The North Side. — T'he north side is the older. In the autumn
of 1635, “about sixty men. women and little ehildren, went by
land toward Connecticut.,” says Winthrop’s Journal, under date
of Oct, 5, 1655, “with their cows, horses and swine, and after a
tedious awd difficult journey arrived safe there.”

Colonial History. — T'he Rev. William DeLoss Love, Ph.D., of
Hartford, Conn., who is the anthor and publisher of “The Colonial
History of Hartford™ (1914), from which we are freely quoting,
and hereby acknowledge onr indebtedness, identifies the following
as a parl of that company, and thinks that they were the pioneers
who located their house lots on the north side at that time, namely,
Elder William Goodwin, John Steele, William Westwood, Thomas
Scott, Steplhien Hart, William Pantrv. John Barnard, William
Butler. William Kelsev, Nathaniel Elv. Nicholas Clark, Richard
Webb, Richard Goodman, Edward Elmer, Mathew Marvin, Thomas
Stanley,—sivteen.

He savs. “in the judgment of the wise it was necessary for
some to go forwarl to prepare the wav, and there was at least a
tacit agreement, to which the ministers were a partv, thal others
would follow the next season,”

Ta the above sixteen he thinks that nine more should be added,
inasimuch as their house lots are intermingled with the others, as
though they were all selected at one and the same {ime.  Since,
however, it is known that some, at least, of the nine, accompanied
Hooker in his march the next summer. the anthor holds that, after
stlecting their lots in the autumn of 1635, they returned to New-
towne in time to accompany their families in their journey at thal
fime throngh the wilderness to Suekiang,  The nine were Mathew
Allvn, Jolm Stone, Timothy Stanlev, Edward Stebbins, James
Olmsted, Robert Day, John Taleott, William Lewis. Clement
Chapin. Twa lots were veserved,—one each for Rev. Thomas Hooli-
er amd Rev. Samuel Stone.

But “the majority of the settlers who came in 1636, settled south
af the river and beeame the Sonth-Side Plantation.”  (Ihd.)

South Side Disputed Territory, — The reason for this is not
[ar to seek. The South Side was disputed territory. The Dnteh
claimed it.¥  They held their title from the Pequots, a powerful
tribe who were already predatory and menacing, and with which,
a year later, the English were to fest their prowess, The English

 The Connecticnt River was discovered as early &3 1614 by Adrinn Bloek,
but for nine years after It is not koown that any FHuropean visited it, It is
elaimed that the Duteh took possession of the River in 1623, Be that as it
may, Bdward Winslow penctrated there in 1632, and “pitched upon a plase
for 1 house.” (Broadhead, 1. 210.) But in 1633, June 8. the Dduteh of Map-
Wattan nuule a tresty wich the Imdizns and immediately ballt o bloekhouse
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held their Indian titles from the Sequins,t the ancient ownerg, who,
however, had recently been conquered by the Pequots and made
tributary. Prudence would not permit the premature defiance of
these forces, and hence the first lots were chosen on the north side,
and the movement to the south side was delayed until the arrival,
or the near approach, of Hooker, and the main body of his congre-
gation.

Earliest South Side Lots. — It is quite certain, however, that
in the spring of 1636, after having seeured rights through the
Warwick patent,] lots were actually located on the south side,
those of Jolin White and Samuel Wakeman being the first, includ-
ing. possibly, that of William Hills. Having these titles, both from
the Indians and the English, the seftlers gave little heed to the
Duteh fort ealled “House of Hope.” and even before the arrival of
Thomas Hooker and his band of pilgrims, boldly erossed the Little
River and staked out their home lots as above shown. But on the
arrival of the larger number under Hooker, in June, 1636, the
majority of the new comers, either from policy or choice, or both,
located on the south side. Among them were John Webster, Wil-
liam Whiting and Thomas Welles (the last from Saybrook) fore-
most men of the eolony. Only five proprietors in the colony owned
a larger share of the common, or undivided lands, than John Web-
ster, and only one, William Whiting, as much. Of the seven
largest owners of land held in common, four were located on the

The defect in the title to this land, In the view of the English, was, that it
wis obtained from the wrong Indians; the Pequots and not the Sequing who
were: the anclent owners.

T The Buckinug Indians belonged to Lhe Bequins, a general (ribe which in-
vluded not only the Suackisugs, but Matianueks, or Windsor Indfans; the
Hockinums living on the east side of the Comnecticnt, where Hast Hartford
now standg, and the Podunks, seattered along the Podunk River (Podunk
means “place of fire”) Iying between what is now Sonth Windsor and Eust
Hartford. The chief sachem of these clang was Sowheag who solid land to the
planters of Wethersfield, and the sachem of (he SBuckiaugs was Sequassen, the
son of Sowheag., Some years prior to 1633 the Pequots had conguered the
Sequing to which the above clans belonged. The Dutel purehased of the Pe-
fuats: the Eoglish of the Sequios, the ancient owners:; “and in so doing,
they declared their opinion that the subjugation of this tribe by the Pequots
did not give to the conquerors the rights of ownership In the river lands"”
Lord Saye and Sele wrote in 1642 that the Pequots bhad no just but a usurped
title!" (Holland Documents, I, 128.)

3 It Iz cloimed that Robert, Earl of Warwick, received in 1620, with athers,
a patent from James I, and in 1631 the Earl traosferred the terrvitory of Con-
necticnt, under that patent, to Lord Saye and Sele, Lord Brooke, 8ir Richard
Soltonstall, and assoeiates, and, questions of government having been com-
promised lote in the winter of 1635-6, between the patentees and the Newtowne
peaple who were about to mizrate, there followed the events above shown, It
is probahle that Rev. Samuel Stone, early in the seasen, went to Suckinug
and jeined Elder W Goodwin, who had arrived the autumn before, and
they, acting together for the Colony, securad from Sequassen, sachem of the
Hnr‘lﬁuum the Im‘lluu title from the "-h-uuin& Thus wins established the fm'
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south side, namely, George Wyllys, Thomas Welles, John Web-
ster, William Whiting, '

Rev. Thomas Hooker’s Journey.— The journey of Rev.
Thomas Hooker, and the main body of his faithful congregation,
from Newtowne to Suekiaug will ever be memorable. Some had
preceded them the autumn before: others early that spring, and
probably a few followed later that same season. But the majority
started from Newtowne, May 31, 1636, a hundred or more strong,*
including women and children. Mrs. Hooker, the pastor’s wife, be-
ing too ill to walk, was carried on a horse litter. One hundred and
sixty head of caitle were a part of the expedition, and furnished
milk for the party. Thus encumbered, progress must have heen
very slow, and the journey required probably not less than ten
days, and possibly more.

Hooker's Route. — The route by which they reached Suckiaug
has recently been established with probable aceuracy. This was
done in part by an exhaustive study of land records from Cam-
bridge to Hartford, and nofing the references to an ancient In-
dian trail which was no doubt the line of their march.

The course thus shown was from Cambridge to Watertown, Weston,
Wayland, Framingham, passing north of Cochituate Pond; through the
borders of South Framingham, Ashland, Hopkinton, Westborough, Grafton:
thence through Millbury, north of Singleton Pond to Oxford, turning
westward at the Centre, and going through Charlton, whose ancient name
was “Quabaug Path.” It is suggested that they spent their first sabbath
at Sturbridge, on the western slope of Fisk Hill, where tradition lo-
cates a camping place. Going down the slope westward, and erossing
the brook, they passed the foot of Cemetery Iill, and “0ld Tantiusque
Fordway,” up the valley through Fiskdale. The path went north of
Little Alum Pond to “Little Rest.,” and north of Sherman Pond and north
of Steerage Rock, descending the slope to the Connecticut Valley at Aga-
wam, now Springfield, Massachusetts.

From Agawam they moved southward on the east bank of the Con-

* Dr. Love ncludez the following thirty-five proprietors in the Hooker
party, which duplicates the numes of gome given elsewlere, who, after select-
ing their house lotz in Suckiaug, returned to Newtowne in time to accom-
pany their families. The list of thirty-five proprietors follows: Mr. Thomas
Hooker, Mr. Mathew Allyn, John Taleott, James Olmsted, William Wadsworth,
William Lewis, Timothy Stanley, Ildward Stebbins, John Pratt, William Ttus-
coe, James Ensign, John Hopking, George Steele, Stephen Post, Thomas Judd,
Thomas Lord, Sen., John Stone, Richard Lord, John Maynard, Jeremy Adams,
Samuel Greenhill, Robert Diy, Mathaniel Richards, Joseph Mygatt, Richard
Butler, John Arnold, Thomaz Bull, George Stocking, Seth Grant, Richard Olm-
sted, Joseph Easton, Clement Chaplin, Thomas Lord, Jr., John Olmsted, Samuel
Whitelead. The names of Jolhn Webster, William Whiting, and Thomas
Welles, are not ineluded by Dr. Love in the above l1ist, although he thinks they
hecame settlers in 1636, It is to he observed, however, that the evidence, of
lack of it, which fails to pluce the name of John Webster in the list is equally
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necticut River, throngh “Longmeadow Gate,” so ecalled, hecause the shoul-

der of the hill and the river narrow the space at that point to something
like a gateway: thenee in a general line (still marked by highways), to
what afterward was known as the “John Bissell ferry™” at Windsor, where
they crossed the river and completed their journey to Suckiaung on the
west bank.

Governor Street. — Whether John Webster and his family
came in that group, or later in 1636, he located, as already shown,
on the south side of the Little River, on what afterward was
and still 1s known as Governor Street, not far from what became
the famous Charter Oak.*  Governor Street was so named hecanse
of the number of men living in that vicinity who became gover-
nors,— Edward Hopkins, George Wyllys, Thomas Welles, John
Webster, and as late as 1850, Thomas H. Seymour. The street
extends from Little River, southward, crossing Sheldon Street at
the head, and Charter Oak Avenue about midway of its total
length., The street ends (1914) at Wyllys Street. On the east
side of the street, about half way between Charter Oak Avenue and
Wyllys Street, was the home lot of Gov. John Webster. (See pic-
tures. )

Webster Houses. — In an inferesting volume issued in 1900
by Isham and Brown of Providence, R. 1., from the press of the
Preston and Rounds Clo. of Providence, entitled, “Early Connecti-
cut Houses,” Dr. Henry Barnard of Hartford, writes an important
chapter in Appendix II, entitled, “The Webster Houses.” His
first effort is to correct the ervor that the houses on the estate of
Lieut. Robert Webster, located on Retreat Avenue, and Washington
Street were identical with the home of Gov. John Webster, father
of Lieut. Robert Webster. Dr. Barnard says: “On this portion
(Retreat Ave.) stand three houses, in none of which did his father,
Gov. John Webster, ever live. Goy. Webster's home lot was on the
same plot with Gov. Wyllys™ (directly east of my residence) on
the strect now known as Governor Street, and the house, which T
recollect as far back as 1817, when, I elambered over the fence to
play with the HHillsdale boys, was always known as ‘the Webster
house.” ™

Albert William Webster of New Haven, Conn.. a descendant of
(Hov. Webster, issued in 1900, a twenty page pamphlet entitled.
“One Branch of the Webster Family.” Tn it. he explains that the
(zovernor’s home lot of two acres lay on the east side of Governor
Street, and that the house in which the Governor lived was located
on, or near the spot where the barn of Peter D. Stillman, Esq.,
now (1900) stands.

* A monoment has been erected to mark the location of the Oale, npon which
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